	Individual Action Plan Update for Korea for 2018

	
Highlights of recent policy developments which indicate how [economy] is progressing towards the Bogor Goals and key challenges it faces in its efforts to meet the Goals. 

	


	IAP Chapter (and Sub-Chapter and Section Heading, if any) 
	Improvements made since  2016 IAP 
	Further Improvements Planned 

	Tariffs
	( With the Korean government’s amendment of 『Regulations on tariff concessions in the framework of the agreement establishing the WTO etc.』  to implement the Information Technology Agreement Ⅱ (ITA Ⅱ), tariff reduction was expanded from December 1st, 2016. 
( A  total of 822 items are covered by the ITA Ⅱ. Among those, 406 (or 49%) applied to immediate tariff elimination on December 1st, 2016. Tariffs for 337 items will be eliminated in phases for three years. The rest will be phased out for five or seven years.
	( Under the ITA Ⅱ, 90% of the total 822 items will be subject to tariff elimination by January 1st, 2019.  Also, tariffs on the entire items covered by ITA Ⅱ are expected to be eliminated on January 1st, 2023. 

	Website for further information:  
	Korea Customs Service(www.customs.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ministry of Strategy and Finance
Customs Organization Team
Tel)  +82-44-215-4463
	

	Non-Tariff Measures
Non-tariff measures include but are not restricted to quantitative import/export restrictions/prohibitions, import/export levies, minimum import prices, discretionary import/export licensing, voluntary export restraints and export subsidies
	( No major changes were introduced since Korea’s latest notification in 2012 to the WTO on quantitative restrictions 

of 92 items (at the HS6 or HS10 level). Details can be found in WTO document G/MA/QR/N/KOR/1.
	

	Website for further information:  
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy (www.motie.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details: 
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy

WTO Division

Tel) +82-44-203-5631
	

	Services
	As part of the efforts to enhance the competitiveness of its service industries, Korea further liberalized the service sector beyond its WTO commitments through subsequent FTAs with the US, EU, Australia, New Zealand, Canada, Chile, China, etc.
	Korea and China agreed to launch the subsequent negotiation between Korea and China for services and investment in Decemeber, 2017.

	Website for further information:  
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy(www.motie.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy

Multilateral Trade Cooperation Division

Tel) +82-44-203-5643
	

	Investment


	(  Korea has made continuous efforts to make regulatory environment more business-friendly and to improve incentive system for attracting Foreign Direct Investment.

(  Such efforts include the following; 

· ‘Littoral fishing’ and ‘other service activities incidental to air transportation’ were removed from the categories of businesses in which the shares of foreign equity ownership is limited in September 2016 and March 2017, respectively.
· In order to address challenges the foreign investors may have, the Minister of Trade, Industry and Energy and senior officials have held regular meetings with foreign investors and foreign chambers of commerce in Korea.
	

	Website for further information:  
	Invest Korea (www.investkorea.org)

Foreing investment Ombudsman (www.i-ombudsman.or.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy
Foreign Investment Policy Division
Tel)  +82-44-203-4074
	

	Standards and Conformance


	( As of June 2017,  13,209 out of 14,872 standards in total comply with corresponding international standards.

* Rate of adoption : 88.8%

* Rate of harmonization : 97.1%
( Regulatory coordination has been set in place to evaluate whether technical regulations governed by all relevant authorities and government agencies comply with international standards, and to identify overlapping technical regulations at the national level.

( In January 2017, the ‘Electric appliances safety control act and the ‘Quality control and safety management of industrial products act’ were integrated into the ‘Electric appliances and consumer products safety control act’ in order to systematically manage the electric appliances and industrial products operated in similar system.
( As of December 2017, Korea is participating in 731 ISO TC/SCs and  173 IEC TC/SCs.  Korea is serving as the Secretariat for 16 ISO TC/SCs and 8 IEC TC/SCs and as the Convenorship for 102 ISO TC/SCs and 35 IEC TC/SCs
( Korea actively participated in ISO and IEC Governance  such as ISO Council(2010~2016), TMB(2009~2011, 2012~2014, 2016~2018), IEC CB(2009~2011, 2012~2014, 2015~2017, 2018~2021), SMB(2009~2011, 2012~2014, 2015~2017. 2018~2021), CAB(2010~2015, 2016~2018), MSB(2012~2016, 2017~2020). In particular, the 82nd IEC General Meeting will be held in October 2018 in Busan, Korea.
	

	Website for further information:  
	Korean Agency for Technology and Standards (www.kats.go.kr/en)

Korean Network on World TBT (www.knowtbt.kr)

KC(Korea Certification) Mark ( http://safetykorea.kr/)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Korean Agency for Technology and Standards
Inernational Standards Division 
Tel)  +82-43-870-5405
	

	Customs Procedures


	( Korea concluded AEO MRAs with APEC Members including Thailand, Australia, Malaysia and Peru. 
(  Opened the ‘Express Cargo Logistics Center’ which is based on the automation system for the facilitation of e-commerce and express cargo logistics. 

( Developed an express cargo information analysis system for effective handling of express cargo. 
(  Improved clearance environment for exportation and importation by establishing the 4th Generation e-Clearance System. 
( With the conclusion of MOU between the Korea Customs Service (KCS) and Korea Post, logistics process that transports e-commerce postal items between Korea and China by maritime shipping with low transport cost was developed. 
	(  Korea is pushing ahead with AEO MRA with Vietnam, a member of APEC. 
(  Promoting the development of a customs administration system based on Big data technologies for the improvement of risk management and customs administration system. 
( Pushing forward with the expansion of e-C/O exchange partners to include ASEAN member countries and India for FTA preferential treatment without submitting documents. 

	Website for further information:  
	Korea Customs Service(www.customs.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Korea Customs Service

Multilateral Cooperation Division

Tel) +82-42-481-7968
	

	Intellectual Property Rights


	(  By amending the Patent Act (effective as of March 1, 2017), Korea adopted an opposition system, ex-officio re-examination system, etc. The revised system aimed at reviewing a patent that is registered in the early stage; guaranteeing the stability of patent rights by preventing erroneous patents from the beginning; expanding opportunities for the public to participate in reviewing of patentability; and improving quality of patents by preventing erroneous patents from being registered through ex-officio re-examination.
( The recent amendments was a complete overhaul of the Trademark Act (effective on September 1, 2016) for the first time in 26 years since 1990. Through the revision, Korea modified complicated legal terms for the general public to better comprehend the trademark law, expanded trademark choices for applicants and further enhanced user convenience by improving the trademark system. For instance,  Korea alleviated requirements for acquiring distinctiveness and determination. Whether the filed trademark is similar to a prior  registered mark is now determined at a later stage of the examination process, namely just before the final determination of the registration, instead of after the filing date. This allows an application to be granted if the right of the prior mark becomes expired at the stage of registration decision.
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	( Ministry of Culture, Sports and Tourism (www.mcst.go.kr)
( Ministry of Justice (www.moj.go.kr)

( Korean Intellectual Property Office (www.kipo.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ministry of Culture, Sports and Tourism
Cultural Trade and Cooperation Division
Tel) +82-44-203-2595
Korean Intellectual Property Office
Multilateral Affairs Division
Tel) +82-42-481-8229

Ministry of Justice

International Legal Affairs Division 

Tel) +82-2-2110-4244
	

	Competition Policy


	( From 2016 on as well, the KFTC pursued policies to root out anti-competitive conducts such as cartels, anti-competitive M&As, abuse of dominance and unfair trade practices. In 2016, the KFTC imposed measures on 64 cartel cases and  60 unfair trae practices. The KFTC also conducted an investigation on the abuse of Standard Essential Patents (SEP) by market-dominating enterprises imposing a total of KRW 1.03 trillion. The KFTC conducted in-depth reviews on 26 M&A cases, blocking one case and  imposing remedies on two cases. One case was withdrawn.
( The provision regarding large business groups in the Monopoly Regulation and Fair Trade Act was amended by expanding the target, which is subject to regulations against illegal profit taking, to business groups with more than KRW 5 trillion in asset.
( Based on the FTA competition chapter concluded in 2016 with five countries in Central America, the KFTC laid the groundwork for enabling trade in the ‘market where competition is ensured’.
	

	Website for further information:  
	Korea Fair Trade Commission (http://eng.ftc.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Korea Fair Trade Commission 

International Cooperation Division 

email) kftc@korea.kr
	

	Government Procurement


	( Korea has made further  liberalization in the area of government procurement through multilateral FTA such as Korea- Central America(Panama, Costa Rica, Honduras, El Salvador and Nicaragua) FTA(initialled in March 2017, not in force yet).
( To strengthen transparency and fair procurement, PPS established the  `Fair Procurement Management Division’, strengthening inspection and supervision role of illegal procurement practices. In 2016, 277 suppliers were inspected, 147 suppliers were exposed, and KRW 4.5billion of illegal profit was reclaimed.
( To strengthen transparency and fair procurement, PPS established the  `Fair Procurement Management Division’, strengthening inspection and supervision role of illegal procurement practices. In 2016, 277 suppliers were inspected, 147 suppliers were exposed, and KRW 4.5billion of illegal profit was reclaimed.
	( Additional liberalization in the area of government procurement is expected through the bilateral FTAs with Ecuador, Israel and multilateral FTAs with China and Japan, RCEP(ASEAN, Australia, China, India, Japan, and New Zealand) being underway.

	Website for further information:  
	Ministry of Strategy and Finance(www.mosf.go.kr)
Public Procurement Service (www.pps.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	(  Ministry of Strategy and Finance

Public Contract and Procurement Policy Division

Tel) +82-44-215-5215

(  Public Procurement Service

International Cooperation Division

Tel) +82-70-4056-7470
	

	Deregulation/Regulatory Review


	• “Cost-in, Cost out”(CICO) has been formally entered into force in 2016. CICO is a mechanism to restrict the increase of the costs of newly introduced or reinforced regulations by abolishing or relaxing regulations that carry an equal or more amount of costs.
	• In the emerging industries and new technologies sector, a new regulatory approach (comprehensive negative regulatory management system), which is different from the existing regulatory approach, is adopted to cope with the rapid technological development. 

	Website for further information:  
	Information Portal for Regulatory Reform (www.better.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Regulatory Reform Bureau, Prime Minister’s Office

Tel) +82-44-200-2431
	

	Implementation of WTO Obligations/ROOs 


	( Korea has made 239 notifications under WTO Agreements, including the Agreement on TBT, SPS, Subsidies and Countervailing Measures, Rules of Origin, Agriculture, Government Procurement , Implementation of Article 6, 17:4, 24:7 of the GATT 1994, 5:7 of the GATS during  the reporting period(2016-17).
	( Korea will continue to actively and constructively engage in the efforts to promote further liberalization and keep supporting the rules-based multilateral trading system.

	Website for further information:  
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy (www.motie.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy

World Trade Organization Division

Tel) +82-44-203-5630
	

	Dispute Resolution

	(  Korea has been actively engaged in the WTO dispute settlement procedures to resolve its trade disputes in the multilateral forum.  One case has been brought against Korea in 2016 and one dispute Korea brought to the WTO as complainant in 2014 closed in January 2018. Therefore as of January 19, 2018, Korea is participating in two WTO disputes, one as the complainant and one as the  respondent. 
(  Furthermore, Korea has actively participated in the DSU review negotiation whose mandate is to clarify and improve the procedural law of the WTO dispute settlement mechanism by submitting various proposals.
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy (www.motie.go.kr)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy

Trade Dispute Settelment Division

Tel) +82-44-203-5770
	

	Mobility of Business People


	With the aim of expanding the users of the automated immigration service (SES), Korea concluded an MOU on the mutual use of auto-gates with Macau in December 2016 (SES-APC). Also, from September 2016, the online pre-enrollment procedure was dispensed with regarding the mutual use of auto-gates between Korea and Hong Kong. 
While Chinese group tourists has occupied about 50% of all visas issued by Korean Diplomatic Missions in China, Korea made it possible for the group tourists to apply for and issue e-visas online via the website(www.visa.go.kr) without having to visit the Korean Diplomatic Missions in China from March 2016. 
Korea has expanded the eligibility for APEC Business Travel Card (ABTC) to overseas Koreans working for a parent company of a foreign-invested company since September 2016. 
As the issuance requirements for the International Trade Visa (D-9-1) diversified by the introducement of the Points System, Korea supports visa issuance to eligible persons with trade expertise or having wide experience living in Korea. 
	Korea plans to expand the use of auto-gates by allowing short-term foreign visitors.

	Website for further information:  
	Korea Immigration Service(www.immigration.go.kr)
HI-KOREA (www.hikorea.go.kr), an electronic government system for foreigners  
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Border Control Division, Korea Immigration Service

(TEL:+82-2-2110-4043)
	

	Official websites that gather economies’ information


	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy (www.motie.go.kr) 

Ministry of Strategy and Finance (www.mosf.go.kr)
Ministry of Foreign Affairs (www.mofa.go.kr) 
	

	RTAs/FTAs  



	- Description of current   agreements
	As of January 2018, Korea has concluded 16 FTAs, including a new agreement(Korea-Colombia FTA) entered into force during the last two years.

	- Agreements under negotiation
	RCEP, Korea-China-Japan FTA, Korea-Ecuador SECA, Korea-Israel FTA

	
	RCEP
	Started in November, 2012, had 20 rounds of negotiations

	
	Korea-China-Japan FTA
	Started in November, 2012, had 12 rounds of negotiations

	
	Korea-Ecuador SECA
	Started in August, 2015, had 5 rounds of negotiations

	
	Korea-Israel FTA
	Started in May, 2016, had 5 rounds of negotiations

	- Future plans


	Korea will continue its active participation in the regional economic integration process in the Asia-Pacific region and pursue win-win FTAs with emerging economies. Korea also seeks to upgrade its existing FTAs to keep up to date with modern trade practices.

Korea-Central America FTA will be signed on February, 2018.

	Website for further information:  
	Free Trade Agreement(www.fta.go.kr); Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy (english.motie.go.kr)

	Contact point for further details:
	Ministry of Trade, Industry and Energy 

FTA Policy Planning Division

Tel) +82-44-203-5742


